
Page 1 of 1 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 

November 07, 2023 

6:00 P.M. 

AGENDA www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

The public is invited to attend Council Meetings and Workshops in person, via conference call or over the 

internet. The information for attending is provided below.   

Council Meetings and Workshops attendance options: 

In-Person: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center at 9002 Main Street East in Bonney Lake 

By phone: 408-740-7256 (Meeting ID: 215 767 540#) 

By internet: Chrome- https://bluejeans.com/215767540 The City will be turning off all public cameras 

and microphones when attending online - Only staff and presenters will be visible and unmuted. 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Michael McCullough

A. Pledge of Allegiance

II. ROLL CALL: Mayor Michael McCullough, Deputy Mayor Terry Carter, Councilmember Angela

Baldwin, Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember Gwendolyn Fullerton, Councilmember J.

Kelly McClimans, Councilmember Dan Swatman, and Councilmember Tom Watson.

III. AGENDA ITEMS:

A. Council Open Discussion:

B. Presentation: Parks, Trails Recreation, and Open Space Plan – Community Parks (AYP,

Midtown, Cedarview, Victor Falls) Concept Design.

C. Review Of Council Minutes: October 10, 2023 City Council Meeting, October 17, 2023

City Council Workshop, and October 24, 2023 Meeting.

D. Discussion: AB23-128 – Resolution 3178 - A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City

Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Adopting The 2024-2029 Six Year

Transportation Improvement Program.

IV. EXECUTIVE/CLOSED SESSION: None.

V. ADJOURNMENT

For citizens with disabilities requesting translators or adaptive equipment for communication purposes, the City 

requests notification as early as possible prior to the meeting regarding the type of service or equipment needed. 

The City Council may act on items listed on this agenda, or by consensus give direction for future action. 

The Council may also add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda. 

Page 3

Page 15

Agenda Packet p.1 of 24

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/
https://bluejeans.com/215767540?src=calendarLink&flow=joinmeeting


Agenda Packet p. 2 of 24



Page 1 of 4 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

October 10, 2023  
6:00 P.M. 

DRAFT MINUTES www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Location: The physical location of the Council Meeting was at the Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal 
Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. The public was also given the option to call in 
or attend virtually the Council Meeting. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Michael McCullough, called the meeting to order at 6:00
p.m.

A. Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor McCullough led the audience in the Pledge of
Allegiance. 

B. Roll Call: City Clerk Sadie Schaneman called the roll. In addition to Mayor
McCullough, elected officials attending were, Councilmember Angela Baldwin,
Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember J. Kelly McClimans,
Councilmember Dan Swatman and Councilmember Tom Watson. Deputy Mayor
Terry Carter was in virtual attendance. Councilmember Gwendolyn Fullerton was
not in attendance.

Councilmember Watson moved to excuse the absence of Councilmember
Fullerton. Councilmember Evans seconded the motion.

           Motion approved 6-0. 

Staff members in attendance at the physical location were Chief of Mark Berry, 
Administrative Services Director Chuck McEwen, Public Services Director Ryan 
Johnstone, Deputy City Attorney/Prosecutor Dena Burke, City Clerk Sadie 
Schaneman and Records and Disclosure Coordinator Kandice Besaw.  

Staff members in virtual attendance using the City’s BlueJeans conference line 
were Judge Joanna Daniels and City Attorney Jennifer Robertson. 

C. Agenda Modifications: None.

D. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:

1. Proclamation: First Responders Appreciation Proclamation.

Mayor McCullough read the proclamation making October 23 to October
29, 2023, First Responders Appreciation week in the City of Bonney Lake.

Audio starts at: 
06:00:00 

Audio starts at: 
06:02:00 

Agenda Packet p.3 of 24

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


City Council Meeting [ROUGH] Minutes  October 10, 2023 
  

Page 2 of 4 

Councilmember Watson shared that each year the lions club show their 
appreciation and support to the Police Department, Fire Department and 
Sub Stations by bringing gifts, baked goods, and posters from the schools. 
 

2. Proclamation: Domestic Violence Awareness Month. 
 

Mayor McCullough read the proclamation making the month of October 
Domestic Violence Awareness month in the City of Bonney Lake. 
 

3. Presentation: Exodus Housing Presentation for Domestic Violence 
Awareness Month. 
Tonya Tunnel-Thornhill Executive Director and Lina Abulaban Family 
Service Specialist spoke about the Rapid Rehousing Program for survivors 
of Domestic Violence. 
 
Council asked questions and shared their thoughts including: 

• Difference between shelter and rapid rehousing 
• What is the outreach and how would someone acquire their 

services.  
 

II.  PUBLIC HEARINGS, CITIZEN COMMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE:  
 

A. Public Hearing: None. 
  

B. Citizen Comments: For efficient use of city resources, comments will be a short 
summary and not verbatim.  Video recordings will be uploaded to the city’s 
YouTube channel and an audio recording to the state digital archives for review 
of all the comments.  
 
Mayor McCullough announced that citizen commentary is roughly about city 
business only, that we are not here to attack or criticize any individuals and if that 
happens, microphones will be cutoff. 

 
Erin Musky - Bonney Lake Public Library: Gave an update on the events that 
took place over the summer, spoke about the upcoming programs and how they 
are working with city planning to offer informational sessions. 
 
Dan Decker, 20401 70th St E, Bonney Lake: Spoke about chronic liars 
establishing credibility and trust. He also mentioned fluoride in the city drinking 
water. 

 
C. Correspondence:  None. 

 
III. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

Audio starts at: 
6:15:00 

Audio starts at: 
6:25:26 

Agenda Packet p. 4 of 24



City Council Meeting [ROUGH] Minutes  October 10, 2023 
  

Page 3 of 4 

A. Finance Committee: Deputy Mayor Carter reported the Finance Committee did 
not meet and is expected to have their next meeting virtually at 5:00 p.m. on 
October 24th, 2023. 
 

B. Community Development Committee: Councilmember Swatman reported the 
Community Development Committee met in person and virtually on October 3, 
2023. The Committee discussed and forwarded AB23-128, to a future meeting, 
discussed transportation and approved their minutes.  
 

C. Public Safety Committee: Councilmember Evans reported the Public Safety 
Committee met in person and virtually today at 3:30 p.m. The Committee 
received an update from the Police Department and East Pierce Fire Department. 
Received a monthly report from the Emergency Manager as well as the 
Prosecutor. Had a presentation on Domestic Violence and received a report from 
Code Enforcement. The Committee discussed and forwarded AB23-139 to 
tonight’s consent agenda, conversed about the derelict home off 192nd, city 
guardrails and approved their minutes. 
 

D. Other Reports:  
   

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:  

A. Approval of Corrected Minutes: None.  

B. Approval of Accounts Payable and Utility Refund Checks/Vouchers:  
Accounts Payable check/vouchers #95503 to #95523 in the amount of $5,165.05. 
Accounts Payable check/vouchers #95524 to #95594 and wire transfer #35636755, 
in the amount of $608,946.82. Voids: Check #94579 – Check not received – 
Reissued. 

C. Approval of Payroll: September 16 – 30, 2023 for checks #34868-34879 
including Direct Deposits and Electronic Transfers totaling $894,688.60. Voids: 
None. 

D. AB23-139 – Resolution 3182 - A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, To Authorize Two City Of Bonney 
Lake Staff To Attend The International Association Of Emergency Managers 71st 
Annual Conference In Long Beach, CA on November 3-9, 2023. 

E. AB23-136 – Motion M23-136 - A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing The Mayor To Sign The 
Washington State Department Of Health Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
Loan Contract Number #DWL28228-0 For Design And Construction Of The 
Lakeridge 810 Reservoir.  
 

Councilmember Watson moved to approve the Consent Agenda as modified. 
Council Member Evans seconded the motion. 
 

Audio starts at: 
6:30:00 

Agenda Packet p.5 of 24



City Council Meeting [ROUGH] Minutes  October 10, 2023 
  

Page 4 of 4 

Consent Agenda approved 6 - 0. 
 

V. FINANCE COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 

VI. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 

VII. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.  

VIII. FULL COUNCIL ISSUES: None.          
                                                                                                       

IX. EXECUTIVE/CLOSED SESSION: None. 

X. ADJOURNMENT: 

At 6:30 p.m. the Meeting was adjourned by Mayor McCullough with the common 
consent of the City Council.  
 
 

   
 
 

Sadie A. Schaneman, CMC, City Clerk  Michael McCullough, Mayor  
 
Items presented to Council at the October 10, 2023, Meeting for the record: None. 
 
 
Note:  Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are on file with the City Clerk. For detailed 
information on agenda items, please view the corresponding Agenda Packets, which are posted on the city website and on file with the City Clerk. 

 

Agenda Packet p. 6 of 24



Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
 

October 17, 2023 
6:00 P.M. 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 

www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us        

 
Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER:  Deputy Mayor Carter 

 
A. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Sadie Schaneman called the roll. In addition to Deputy Mayor 

Terry Carter, elected officials attending were Councilmember Angela Baldwin, 
Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember J. Kelly McClimans, Councilmember Dan 
Swatman, and Councilmember Tom Watson. Mayor Michael McCullough and 
Councilmember Gwendolyn Fullerton were not in attendance. 

 
Councilmember McClimans moved to excuse the absence of Councilmember Evans 
and Councilmember Fullerton. Councilmember Watson seconded the motion. 

 
                   Motion approved 5-0. 
 

Staff members in attendance at the physical location were City Administrator John 
Vodopich, Chief of Police Mark Berry, Public Services Director Ryan Johnstone, Planning 
and Building Supervisor Jason Sullivan, Customer Service Manager Stephanie Tonellato, 
City Clerk Sadie Schaneman, Records and Disclosure Coordinator Kandice Besaw, and City 
Attorney Jennifer Peterson 
 
Staff member in virtual attendance using the City’s BlueJeans conference line was Interim 
Recreation Supervisor Alex Latham. 
 

III. AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

A. Presentation: MRAC Update 
Scott Nall and Doug Clevenger of MRAC 
Scott Nall gave a presentation about the Reed property. He touched on the history, 
status and potential of the property, along with their plans of moving forward.  
 
Council asked questions and shared their thoughts including: 
• What sponsors have been approached. 
• Participants vs. Parking occupancy.  
•   Time frame for development. 
•   Bringing in local revenue. 

 

Audio starts at: 
06:00:00 

Audio starts at: 
06:01:11 

Agenda Packet p.7 of 24

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


City Council Workshop DRAFT Minutes   October 17, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

B. Council Open Discussion:  
 

Councilmember McClimans: 
Reed Property: Councilmember McClimans shared his personal history with sports 
and importance of it for the youth. He expressed that he would like to see where this 
project could go. 
 
Councilmember Baldwin: 
Citizen Commentary: Councilmember Baldwin shared that she is not in agreeance of 
placing barriers on public comments and what the public is allowed to say.  
Councilmembers all agreed that the public should be allowed to speak freely on any 
subject that they wish and that being a Councilmember means listening to the public 
and being aware that being a Councilmember is never “turned” off.  
 
Councilmember Watson: 
Communities for Families Coalition: Councilmember Watson shared that he 
attended the Communities for Families Coalition Meeting on October 5, 2023. The 
main topics were mental health and the Community Summit.  
 
Homecoming Parade: Councilmember Watson said he, Councilmember Evans and 
Mayor McCullough were present for the parade and would like to see more of these 
events in Bonney Lake. 
 
Timber Ridge Animal Hospital: Councilmember Watson shared that he attended the 
re-grand opening for their new location.  There was a large turnout and it is nice to 
see businesses are staying in the city as they grow. 
 
Councilmember McClimans: 
Taxation: Councilmember McClimans expressed that he feels the council and city 
should charge back taxes to the city that is charging Bonney Lake taxes for services 
provided to out of city residents.  
Customer Service Manager Stephanie Tonellato shared that the city can notify those 
effected once Council approves charging back the taxes. 

 
C. Review Of Council Minutes: September 12, 2023, City Council Meeting, 

September 19, 2023, City Council Workshop and September 26, 2023, City Council 
Meeting. 

 
The draft minutes were forwarded with one correction to the October 24, 2023, 
meeting for approval. 
 

D.  Discussion: Council Retreat Date.  
  
      The council agreed that on Saturday March 2, 2024, they would hold their yearly 

council retreat. 
        

Audio starts at: 
06:55:41 

Audio starts at: 
06:36:04 

Audio starts at: 
06:55:56 

Agenda Packet p. 8 of 24



City Council Workshop DRAFT Minutes   October 17, 2023 

Page 3 of 3 

IV. EXECUTIVE/CLOSED SESSION: None.  
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 6:59 p.m. the Meeting was adjourned by Deputy Mayor Carter with the common 
consent of the City Council. 

 
 
 
 

Sadie A. Schaneman, CMC, City Clerk  Terry Carter, Deputy Mayor  
 
 

Items presented to Council at the October 17, 2023, Workshop: None 
 
Note:  Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are on file with the City 
Clerk. For detailed information on agenda items, please view the corresponding Agenda Packets, which are posted on the city 
website and on file with the City Clerk. 
 

Agenda Packet p.9 of 24



 
Page 1 of 4 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

October 24, 2023  
6:00 P.M. 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

 

www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us        

 
Location: The physical location of the Council Meeting was at the Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal 
Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. The public was also given the option to call in 
or attend virtually the Council Meeting. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Michael McCullough, called the meeting to order at 6:00 
p.m.  

A. Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor McCullough led the audience in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

 
B. Roll Call: City Clerk Sadie Schaneman called the roll. In addition to Mayor 

McCullough, elected officials attending were Deputy Mayor Terry Carter, 
Councilmember Angela Baldwin, Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember 
J. Kelly McClimans, Councilmember Dan Swatman, and Councilmember Tom 
Watson. Councilmember Gwendolyn Fullerton was in virtual attendance.  

 
 Staff members in attendance at the physical location were City Administrator 

John Vodopich, Chief of Police Mark Berry, Administrative Services Director 
Chuck McEwen, Public Services Director Ryan Johnstone, Customer Service 
Manager Stephanie Tonellato, Human Resource Manager Brian Sandler, 
Emergency Manager Raejean Kreel, City Clerk Sadie Schaneman, Records and 
Disclosure Coordinator Kandice Besaw, and City Attorney Jennifer Robertson. 

   
There were no staff members in virtual attendance. 
  

C. Agenda Modifications: None. 
 

D.  Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:  
  
 1. Presentation: CEMP Update 
 Emergency Manager Reajean Kreel 

Emergency Manager Raejean Kreel introduced Pat Donovan, Lead Planner of the 
East Pierce Interlocal Coalition, who went over the Updated Comprehensive 
Emergency Management Plan. 
 
Council asked questions and shared their thoughts including: 
• Coordination established with South Sound 911. 
• Gaps in the radio systems. 

 
 

Audio starts at: 
06:00:00 

Audio starts at: 
6:15:00 

Agenda Packet p. 10 of 24

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


City Council Meeting [ROUGH] Minutes  October 24, 2023 
  

Page 2 of 4 

II.  PUBLIC HEARINGS, CITIZEN COMMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE:  
 

A. Public Hearing: AB23-128 Resolution - Transportation Improvement Plan. 
Mayor McCullough opened the public hearing at 6:22 p.m. He invited anyone 
interested in addressing the council on the topic of the hearing to come forward. 
No one came forward to address the council. Mayor McCullough closed the 
public hearing at 6:23 p.m. 
 

B. Citizen Comments: For efficient use of city resources, comments will be a short summary and 
not verbatim.  Video recordings will be uploaded to the city’s YouTube channel and an audio 
recording to the state digital archives for review of all the comments.  

 
Jessica Taylor, 32335 44th Place SW, Federal Way: Spoke about the Bonney 
Lake Historical Society and asked for support as well as welcomed all to become 
a member of the society. 
 
Ron Walker, 10407 174th Ave E., Bonney Lake: Spoke about the Bonney Lake 
Historical Society and asked that the council consider incorporating the society 
into the city. 
 
Chris Leier, 204916 Island Drive, Lake Tapps: Spoke about Beautify Bonney 
Lake. He thanked the city staff and councilmembers for participating and 
acknowledged Councilmembers Evans and Watson for all their support and for 
always participating each year. 
 
Dan Decker, 20401 70th St E, Bonney Lake: Spoke on the rights of citizens to 
speak at council meetings and presented Federal Supreme Court and State Court 
rulings in favor of speaking at council meetings. 

 
C. Correspondence:  None. 

 
III. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

A. Finance Committee: Deputy Mayor Carter reported the Finance Committee met in 
person and virtually today at 5:00 p.m. The Committee went thru personnel 
updates; discussed and forwarded AB23-119 to a future meeting. Discussed 
Public Services department staff position realignments, the City Attorney position 
and approved their minutes. 
 

B. Community Development Committee: Councilmember Swatman reported the 
Community Development Committee did not meet and is expected to have their 
next meeting in person and virtually at 3:30 p.m. on November 7, 2023. 
 

C. Public Safety Committee: Councilmember Evans reported the Public Safety 
Committee did not meet and is expected to have their next meeting in person and 
virtually at 3:30 p.m. on November 14, 2023. 
 

D. Other Reports:  

Audio starts at: 
6:22:08 

Audio starts at: 
6:34:00 

Audio starts at: 
6:23:11 

Agenda Packet p.11 of 24



City Council Meeting [ROUGH] Minutes  October 24, 2023 
  

Page 3 of 4 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:  

A. Approval of Corrected Minutes: September 12, 2023, City Council Meeting, 
September 19, 2023, City Council Workshop, and September 26, 2023, City 
Council Meeting.  

B. Approval of Accounts Payable and Utility Refund Checks/Vouchers:  
Accounts Payable check/vouchers #95595 to #95642 and wire transfers 
#2023100301, and #2023100501, in the amount of $333,881.41. Accounts Payable 
wire transfer #2023101701, in the amount of $28,978.54. Accounts Payable wire 
transfers #2023090501, #2023091402, #2023100659, and #2023101101, in the 
amount of $80,569.34. Voids: Check #95487 – Wrong vendor – Reissued. Check 
#95421 – Wrong vendor – Reissued. Check #95394 – Check not received – 
Reissued. 

C. Approval of Payroll: October 1 – 15, 2023 for checks #34880-34881 including 
Direct Deposits and Electronic Transfers totaling $727,055.61. Voids: None. 

D. AB23-140 – Motion M23-140 – A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Charging Our Auburn Customers The 
11.5% Auburn City Utility Tax.  
 

Councilmember Watson moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Council Member 
Evans seconded the motion. 
 

Consent Agenda approved 7 - 0. 
 

V. FINANCE COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 

VI. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 

VII. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.  

VIII. FULL COUNCIL ISSUES: None.          
                                                                                                       

IX. CLOSED SESSION:   

Mayor McCullough announced the City Council will meet in Closed Session pursuant to 
RCW 42.30.140(4)(a) to discuss a collective Bargaining agreement. He stated the session 
will last for 20 minutes and there will be no Council action following the session. 
 
Due to no action being taken on the matter, Mayor McCullough announced the Council 
Meeting would now be adjourned. 
 
The Closed Session started at 6:38 p.m. and concluded at 6:58 p.m. 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT: 

Audio starts at: 
6:36:07 

 

Agenda Packet p. 12 of 24



City Council Meeting [ROUGH] Minutes  October 24, 2023 
  

Page 4 of 4 

At 6:36 p.m. the Meeting was adjourned by Mayor McCullough with the common 
consent of the City Council.  
 

   
 
 

Sadie A. Schaneman, CMC, City Clerk  Michael McCullough, Mayor  
 
Items presented to Council at the October 24, 2023, Meeting for the record: None. 
 
 
Note:  Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are on file with the City Clerk. For detailed 
information on agenda items, please view the corresponding Agenda Packets, which are posted on the city website and on file with the City Clerk. 

Agenda Packet p.13 of 24



Agenda Packet p. 14 of 24



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

Department/Staff Contact: 
PS / Doug Budzynski 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 
November 07, 2023

Agenda Bill Number: 
AB23-128 

Agenda Item Type: 
Resolution 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
3178 

Sponsor: 

Agenda Subject: Adopting The Six Year Transportation Improvement Program (2024-2029). 

Full Title/Motion: A Resolution  Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, Adopting The 2024-2029 Six Year Transportation Improvement Program. 

Administrative Recommendation:  Approve. 

Background Summary: The City Council conducted a Public Hearing on October 24, 2023 for the 6 Year 
Transportation Program. RCW 35.77.010 requires an annual public hearing for updates to the local 6 Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) in order to be eligible for most grant funding.  
Attachments:  Resolution 3178, 2024-2029 Six Year Transportation Improvement Program, Public Hearing Notice. 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

$ 
Current Balance 

$ 
Required Expenditure 

$ 
Budget Balance 

$
Fund Source 

 General 
 Utilities 
 Other 

Budget Explanation:

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Community Development 

Date: 3 October 2023 
Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Dan Swatman 
Councilmember Tom Watson  
Councilmember Kelly McClimmans 

Forward to: Consent Agenda: Yes  No 

Commission/Board Review: 
Hearing Examiner Review: 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):  November 7, 2023 Public Hearing Date(s): October 24, 2023 
Meeting Date(s): November 14, 2023 Tabled to Date: 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
Ryan Johnstone 

Mayor: 
Michael McCullough. 

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney: 
(if applicable) 

Agenda Packet p.15 of 24



RESOLUTION NO. 3178 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BONNEY LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
THE 2024-2029 SIX YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, City officials are directed by RCW 35.77.010 to adopt a Six Year 
Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, such a plan was prepared and submitted to the Mayor and City 
Council; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on October 24, 2023, with subsequent City 
Council discussion and direction; and 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 
LAKE, WASHINGTON DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Adopts the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program for the years 2024-
2029 to be approved as a guide for the improvement of the streets of the City of Bonney 
Lake. 

Passed by the City Council this 14th day of November 2023. 

Michael McCullough, Mayor 

AUTHENTICATED: 

Sadie A. Schaneman, CMC, City Clerk 

Agenda Packet p. 16 of 24



Page 1 of 6 October 4, 2023 

CITY OF BONNEY LAKE 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
(2024-2029) 

Project categories 

Category A – Intersection Improvements ($10,600,000) 
Traffic signalization and channelization improvements at intersections. Category A improvements 
may be funded by Transportation Impact Fees (TIF), Real-estate Excise Taxes (REET), Gas Taxes, 
WSDOT, federal or state grants, loans, bonds, developer mitigation, and/or Operating Revenue 
(COR) funds. 

Category B - Roadway Major Improvements ($13,020,000) 
Major roadway improvements, for Collector and Minor Arterial Classified roadways including right 
of way acquisition when required. These improvements may be funded by city TIF/REET/Gas 
Tax/COR funds, state or federal grant/loan funding, developer mitigation, and/or WSDOT 
participation. Projects often combine improvements for environmental compliance, storm drainage, 
domestic water and sanitary sewer system extensions, roadway widening, bridge, curb, gutter, 
sidewalks, traffic signalization, lane channelization, street lighting, landscaping, street trees, etc. 
Also included will be a community involvement element.  Category B projects share the same pool 
of funding sources as Category A projects.  

The project phases are as follows: 
Pre-Design/Planning by city or city consultant. 
Environmental Permitting by city or city consultant. 
Right-of-Way acquisition by consultant. 
Design that produces construction plans and specifications by city consultants. 
Advertise and Award construction project by city staff. 
Construction by contractor. 
Construction Management by city staff. 
Project Completion, Closeout, and Acceptance by the city. 

Category C - Road Reconstruction, Overlay, Chip Seal, Sidewalk ($8,512,427) 
Roadway maintenance and/or reconstruction of existing pavement with minor drainage, shoulder 
improvements, signing and channelization, and new sidewalks. Category C projects may be funded 
by state/federal grant or loan funds, state-shared gas taxes, City operating revenues, developer 
contributions, SEPA mitigation, and in some cases traffic impact fees.   

Category D - Transportation Studies ($125,000) 
Transportation or traffic studies include traffic modeling, comprehensive and subarea transportation 
planning.  Category D projects may be funded by state/federal grant or loan funds, City operating 
revenues, developer contributions, or SEPA mitigation.   

Category E - Trail Projects ($10,000,000) 
Non-motorized transportation facilities including walking trails, bicycle routes, and sidewalk 
facilities to the enhance pedestrian and bicycle safety and mobility.  Category E improvements may 
be funded by Park Impact Fees (PIF), Real-estate Excise Taxes (REET), federal or state 

Agenda Packet p.17 of 24



Page 2 of 6 October 4, 2023 

grants/loans, bonds, developer mitigation, current operating revenues (COR), and in some cases 
traffic impact fees.  

Agenda Packet p. 18 of 24



Page 3 of 6 October 4, 2023 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

This is the current list of transportation improvements intended to satisfy the requirements of RCW 35.77.  It is not 
necessarily an exclusive list of transportation-related projects contemplated by the City. Other transportation projects 
may be identified in additional planning or operating documents of the City, including the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
(community mobility element), long range financial planning model, and adopted budgets of the City.  Current revenues 
are available for very few projects on the list.  

Category "A" – Intersection Improvements  

No. Project description Funding Source        Estimated Cost 

A - 1 SR 410 at 214th Ave Dev/TIF/Reet/Grant $ 5,500,000 

A - 2 Veterans Memorial Drive at 
Angeline Rd E  Dev/TIF/REET/Grant $ 1,200,000 
(New RAB, additional turn lanes, sidewalk  
connection to Locust Avenue with project B-1.) 

A - 3 Church Lake Rd at West Tapps HWY E Dev/TIF/REET/Grant $ 2,100,000 
(New signal and additional turn lanes.) 

A - 4 SR 410 at 192nd Ave. Phase 1-A Dev/TIF/Grant/Grant $1,800,000 
(New signal arm and additional turn lanes on  
South side of intersection. Walmart entrance off 
192nd Ave. will be removed. Regrade 192nd.) 

Category “A” Total $ 10,600,000 

Agenda Packet p.19 of 24



Page 4 of 6 October 4, 2023 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

Category "B" Roadway Major Improvements 

No. Project description   Funding Sources         Estimated Cost 

B – 1 Veterans Memorial Drive at Angeline Rd E Dev/TIF/REET $ 4,370,000 
(Additional turn lanes, sidewalk connection to 
 Locust Ave., retaining walls, guardrails – with project A-2) 

B – 2 198th Ave E from SB Hwy to SR 410 Dev/TIF/REET $2,000,000 
(Realign to SR 410, add bike lanes, sidewalk, and 
Stormwater elements.) 

B – 3 221st Avenue – North Side – Eastown COR/REET/Dev $1,600,000 

B – 4 226th Avenue – North Side – Eastown COR/REET/Dev  $500,000 

B – 5 225th Avenue – South Side - Eastown COR/REET/Dev  $400,000 

B – 6 225th Ave. Ct. – South Side - Eastown COR/REET/Dev $1,750,000 

B – 7 229th/230th Ave. – North Side – Eastown COR/REET/Dev  $1,000,000 

B – 8 Entwhistle Road – South Side - Eastown COR/REET/Dev  $1,700,000 

B – 9 Northern Frontage Rd (97th St.) – Eastown COR/REET/Dev  $500,000 

B – 10 Southern Frontage Rd (101st St.) - Eastown COR/REET/Dev  $1,000,000 

   Category “B” Total $13,020,000 

Note: North Side and South Side indicates which side of SR 410 the road section is located on. 

Agenda Packet p. 20 of 24



Page 5 of 6 October 4, 2023 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

Category "C" Roadway reconstruction, asphalt overlay, or chip seal 

Year Project description   Funding Source         Estimated Cost 

2024 
Street Reconstruction Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $400,000 
Street Overlay Program  COR/Gas Tax/REET $136,000 
Street Chip Seal Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $280,000 
Sidewalk Improvements COR/Gas Tax/REET $250,000 
ADA Improvements  COR/Gas Tax/REET $250,000 

2025 
Street Reconstruction Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $100,000 
Street Overlay Program  COR/Gas Tax/REET $140,080 
Street Chip Seal Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $288,400 
Sidewalk Improvements COR/Grant/REET $257,500 
ADA Improvements  COR/Gas Tax/REET $257,500 

2026 
Street Reconstruction Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $424,360 
Street Overlay Program  COR/Gas Tax/REET $144,282 
Street Chip Seal Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $297,052 
Sidewalk Improvements COR/Grant/REET $265,225 
ADA Improvements  COR/Gas Tax/REET $265,225 

2027 
Street Reconstruction Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $115,000 
Street Overlay Program  COR/Gas Tax/REET $148,611 
Street Chip Seal Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $305,964 
Sidewalk Improvements COR/Gas Tax/REET $273,182 
ADA Improvements  COR/Gas Tax/REET $276182 

2028 
Street Reconstruction Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $450,204 
Street Overlay Program  COR/Gas Tax/REET $153,069 
Street Chip Seal Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $315,142 
Sidewalk Improvements COR/Gas Tax/REET $281,377 
ADA Improvements  COR/Gas Tax/REET $281,377 

2029 
Street Reconstruction Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $125,000 
Street Overlay Program  COR/Gas Tax/REET $157,661 
Street Chip Seal Program COR/Gas Tax/REET $324,597 
Sidewalk Improvements COR/Gas Tax/REET $289,819 
ADA Improvements  COR/Gas Tax/REET $289,819 

Category “C” Total         $8,512,427 

Agenda Packet p.21 of 24



Page 6 of 6 October 4, 2023 

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 

Category "D" Transportation Studies 

Year Project description Funding Source       Estimated Cost 

      2028 Update Mobility Plan Grant/COR $125,000 
(Update City wide demographics, 
 traffic counts, and Traffic Model) 

Category “D” Total $125,000 

Category "E" Multimodal  Projects 

     No.        Project description Funding Source        Estimated Cost 

Park and Trail Projects 
E-1 S-B Hwy to Church Lake Rd (3A) PIF/REET/Grant $6,000,000 
E-2 Church Lake Rd to Allan Yorke Pk (3B)     PIF/REET/Grant $4,000,000 

Category “E” Total $10,000,000 

TOTAL PROGRAM COST              $42,257,427 

Agenda Packet p. 22 of 24



Client 3100013000 - City of Bonney Lake- LEGAL ADS Phone (253) 862-8602

Address 9002 Main St E, Suite 300 E-Mail besawk@ci.bonney-lake.wa.us

Bonney Lake, WA,  98391 Fax

Order# 985270 Requested By KANDICE BESAW Order Price $103.40

Classification 3030 - Legal Notices PO # NOPH Tax 1 $0.00

Start Date 10/11/2023 Created By 8280 Tax 2 $0.00

End Date 10/18/2023 Creation Date 10/03/2023, 03:46:16 pm Total Net $103.40

Run Dates 2 Payment $0.00

Publication(s) Enumclaw Courier Herald

Sales Rep 9470 - Jennifer Tribbett Phone (360) 802-8212

E-Mail jtribbett@courierherald.com

Fax

Proofed by Jennifer Tribbett, 10/03/2023 03:46:31 pm Page: 1

Classified Proof

Agenda Packet p.23 of 24



Page: 2

Classified Proof

Agenda Packet p. 24 of 24


	20231017_CouncilWkshp DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
	DRAFT MINUTES
	/

	I. CALL TO ORDER:  Deputy Mayor Carter
	A. Pledge of Allegiance
	II. ROLL CALL: City Clerk Sadie Schaneman called the roll. In addition to Deputy Mayor Terry Carter, elected officials attending were Councilmember Angela Baldwin, Councilmember Justin Evans, Councilmember J. Kelly McClimans, Councilmember Dan Swatman...
	Staff members in attendance at the physical location were City Administrator John Vodopich, Chief of Police Mark Berry, Public Services Director Ryan Johnstone, Planning and Building Supervisor Jason Sullivan, Customer Service Manager Stephanie Tonell...
	Staff member in virtual attendance using the City’s BlueJeans conference line was Interim Recreation Supervisor Alex Latham.
	III. AGENDA ITEMS:
	A. Presentation: MRAC Update
	B. Council Open Discussion:
	C. Review Of Council Minutes: September 12, 2023, City Council Meeting, September 19, 2023, City Council Workshop and September 26, 2023, City Council Meeting.
	IV. EXECUTIVE/CLOSED SESSION: None.
	V. ADJOURNMENT
	At 6:59 p.m. the Meeting was adjourned by Deputy Mayor Carter with the common consent of the City Council.

	20231010_CouncilMtg DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	DRAFT MINUTES
	/


	20231024_CouncilMtg DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	DRAFT MINUTES
	/


	AB23-128 & Res 3178 Packet.pdf
	Resolution 3178 - 2024-2029 Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
	AB23-128- 6 Year TIP Public Hearing
	2023 Six Year TIP Version 2024-2029
	Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
	B – 2 198th Ave E from SB Hwy to SR 410  Dev/TIF/REET  $2,000,000
	B – 3 221st Avenue – North Side – Eastown COR/REET/Dev   $1,600,000
	B – 4 226th Avenue – North Side – Eastown COR/REET/Dev   $500,000
	B – 5 225th Avenue – South Side - Eastown COR/REET/Dev   $400,000
	B – 6 225th Ave. Ct. – South Side - Eastown COR/REET/Dev  $1,750,000
	B – 7 229th/230th Ave. – North Side – Eastown COR/REET/Dev   $1,000,000
	B – 8 Entwhistle Road – South Side - Eastown COR/REET/Dev   $1,700,000
	B – 9 Northern Frontage Rd (97th St.) – Eastown COR/REET/Dev   $500,000
	B – 10 Southern Frontage Rd (101st St.) - Eastown COR/REET/Dev   $1,000,000
	Note: North Side and South Side indicates which side of SR 410 the road section is located on.
	Six Year Transportation Improvement Program


	REP_PROOF_8280_1003_15530945-Public Hearing Notice

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



